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1. Name of Property
historlc name (Former) Pomona High School
other names/site number (Former) Lindley Junior High School

2. Location
street & number 2201 Spring Garden Street N/_] not for publication
city, town Greensboro N/A | vicinity
state North Carolina code NC county Guilford code 081 zlp code 27407
3. Classification
Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
K] private building(s) Contributing Noncontributing”
[ ] public-local [ district 1 3 buildings
[_]public-State [site 0 0 sites
(] public-Federal [Istructure ‘ 0 0 structures
(] object 0 O objects
1 3 __Total
Name of related multiple property listing: Historic and Architectural Number of contributing resources previously
Resources of Greensboro, North Carolina, 1880-1941 llsted In the Natlonal Reglster 0

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that this
[_Jnomination (& request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Placesjand meets the procedural and professlonal requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
In my m@» the peﬂS//\E me?ts [_Jdoes not meet the National Register criterla. __| See continuation sheet.

tﬁ‘( f’a/w% “ple 22892
Signature of certitying official Date

A=

State or Federal agency and bureau

—

In my opinion, the property :] meets Ddoes not meet the National Register criteria. DSee continuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification
I, hereby, certify that this propenrty is:
[:]entered in the National Register,
D See continuation sheet.
Ddetermined eligible for the National
Register. DSee continuation sheet.
[ ldetermined not sligible for the
National Register.

Dremoved from the National Register,
[:]othar, (explain:)

Slignature of the Keeper Date of Action



6. Function or Use

Hisloric Functions (enter categories from instructions)
Education/school

Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
Vacant

Commerce/Trade/warehouse

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(enter categories from instructions)

Classical Revival

Materials (enter categories from instructions)

1 1
foundation _ Prick

walls rick

roof Other: built-up tar/gravel

other stone

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

See continuation sheet
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' The former Pomona High School was built in thres sections. Its
original U-shaped front block was constructed about 1920. In 1940 two
projecting  wings werse  added o the side slevations, t}elr finish

. almost identical +to the original block. The space betwee the rear
wings was filled, in 1951, by a third and final addition. In the lats

1940s and sarly 1950s three separate buildings were constructed to the
ea;t side and the rear of +the school--a cafeteria, a classroom
building, and a gymnasium/auditorium which replaced a rear wing that

had served the same function.

The original section of the former school is two stories +*all and
U-shaped. Its long, north-facing, front Zfacade of nine bays 1is
flanked by end wings with windowless front elevations that project

forward towards Spring Garden Street. Faced with dark

bricks

separated by wide white mortar joints, the building is accented with

limestone, concrete, and terra cotta ornament. At the center of

the

front facade, stepped slightly forward, is an entry pavilion dominated
by & shallow, careful‘y detailed, one-story Doric portico of

limestone. The portico’s four columns support an entablature ‘
narrow

cornice decorated with prxglyphs, metopes, and guttae. The

and

flat roof of the portico is fringed with a limestone balustrade of

turnea balusters and o
transom tops the doub

zaneled piers at each end. A tall multi-paned
e-doored entry that opens behind the »portico.

i
€+ the szecond story, abvove the portico, is a triple group of double-
hung szash windows. Crowning the pavilion is a curved, stepped parapet
outlined in terra cotrta. The windows that cross the front facade to
either side of the vavilion are single, double, or triple groups of
double- nung sash with limestone lintels. Adorning the space between
the Tirst-story and seccnd-story windows are brick panels with raised
brick dLamonds
The windowless Zront elevations o the 2nd wings are decorated by
a recessed concrete band forming the outline of a rectangle that fills
much of thelr faces. ©Siretcher courzes of Dbrick outlining the sides
of the rectangular concrete band have sguares of green terra cotta
tiiles 2t theilr corners. The sides of the wings, facing =ast and west,
mirrcr +the front Ffacace, their classroom windows separated between
stories by raised brick oDanels and diamonds. These side facades also
have doors at the soutna end of both stories opening onto iron fire
escapes
ing around zTh front and side facades of the original

unn
build;ng i3 a raised b

ck watertavle, bSeneath which are sguare,
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boarded-over, basement windows. The facades are also connected by a
continuous terra cotta cornice and by the castellated parapet, fringed
with terra cotta coping, that rises up 1in a semicircle over the

central vavilion.

At the rear of +the side elevations are Two projecting two-story
wings, built in 1940, that in many ways match the front facade wings.
Their east and west elevations have blank faces that are outlined with
concrete rectangles accented by brick bands and green terra cotta
tiles. Their rear faces are filled with tThe same groups of sash
windows separated between floors by the same patterns of brick panels
and diamonds. However, these later wings lack terra cotta coping and
cornices, their lintels are of concrete rather than limestone, ana
they are faced with a different type of brick. In 1951 the gap
between them, at the rear of +the school, was spanned by a two-story
addition. Its smooth, putty-colored bricks and bands of double-hung,
plainly <finished, sash windows are adorneda only by a few shallow
pilasters. This final addition was constructed after +the original
gymnasium/auditorium, which was attached +to and extended south from
the rear of the main block, had been removed.

The interior of the school, now vacant, is simply finished ana
organized. Windowless corridors serve as a spine for the first and
second floors ssrcooms opening off of tn corridors are entered
through fl/e/banéﬁ oors with windows in place of the fourth panel.
mhree—-;g t* transoms, which swing open for ventilation, top the doors
The classrooms are, like the corridors, plainiy finished. Stripped of
their cdesks and empty, they retain long, overnead, florescent light
letdr es and exposed plaster bands, wall +to wall, where their

lackboards once were. 3Broken windows, coupled with neglect, have led
to deterioration of +the interior. In many o <the classrooms plaster
has zulled away from the walls and ceilings.

Trhe s3chool was expanded not only by addi=ions to its main block
In the late 1940s and =arly 1980s three separate buildings, connected
to it by covered wooden walkways, were constructed to its east side
and scuth-Tacing rear. To the southeast of —he main school building,
a4 ONe-3Tory, masonry caisteria was built in tne late 1940s. Taced in
brick, i1t is simply finishsd wlth concrete ccoing at its flat roof and
entriss set in wide shal pilasters with concrete caps. To the =astT
a masonry classroom building was built in 1SZ3 A functional, simply
finishec, one-story, flat-roofasd structure, it 13 faced with wirs-cuz
bricks To the rear of zZhe school is a +%wo-s3tory, concrete block,
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brick-walled gymnasium and auditorium built in 1953 on the site of the
school’s original gymnasium/auditorium. A large, flat-roofed box, it
is lit by tall, wide windows. At 1its rear is a one-story, concrete
block wing that held locker rooms. The covered wooden walkways that
connect the school and the three buildings were built around 1953.
Built within the past fifty years, the three buildings are non-
contributing resources.

The main building and additional classroom building are vacant

and the cafeteria 1is used for storage, as i1s the gymnasium. The
latter Dbuilding has been converted into a warehouse by 0Odell Hardware
Company, which owns the property. Hardware supplies are stacked on

pallets and shelves that reach to the ceiling and loading docks pierce
the west elevation. Although these later buildings must be included in
the nominated area due to the connecting covered walkways, they are un-
obtrusive and plain and do not cetract from the architectural signifi-

cance of the historic school building.



8. Statement of Slgnificance’
Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:
- [Jnationally [ Istatewide N Hocally

Applicable National Register Criteria @A DB [E’IC DD

Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [ JA [ ]8 [Jc [o [JE DF e

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
Architecture ca.192C0-1941 ca.1920
Education

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Builder

Significant Person
N/? Unknown

State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria consideraticns, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

[:{] see continuation srest
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Summary
The former Pomona High School, built about 1920, was among the

the consolidation of
it is an important
public education

first of the large brick schools erected during
Greensboro's school svstem in the 1920s. As such,
reflection of Greensboro's considerable advances in
during the early twentieth centurv. The handsome symmetrical
building, little altered except for the replacement of its rear
auditorium, continues to represent the restrained, classical stvle of
architecture ©vpopular for schools and manv other non- resxaent‘al
structures in Greensboro in the 1920s. As a large structure,
comparison to the modest frame schools that had earlier been ths
throughout the citv and countv, Pomona High School further represen
the scale of the consolidated schools during that booming decads.
school's reriod of significance extends from its ca. 1920 construct
to the onsex: World War II. Its educational context is founc
"Mocern Suburbanization and Industrialization 1300-1Q417 "
Greensboro rulticvle property documentation form. The context
building's architecture is found in the same form, in the dis
of educational buildings &at Property Type 5. L more

[P,

ru

-q'j

of

description of the *evival of classical design in Greensboro
early twentieth centurv is found 2t Property Tveoe 1.

rical Sackground
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structure, was replaced by a larger, U-shaped, one-story, frame

building in 1905. As president of the Guilford County Board of School

Improvemenz, a4 citizens’ group organized to encourage the improvement
of rural schools, he was a driving force behind the construction of
the 1805 school and many other new county schools at the opening of
twentieth century (Guilford County Board of School Improvement 1905).

Lindley has also been credited as the founder of +the present
school, although it was not built until after his 1918 demise
(Greensboro Record, December 5, 1946; Greensboro Daily News, February
18, 1960). In 1920 the J. Van Lindley Nursery Co. agreed to sell a
lot to the Morehead Township School Committee to be used for a school
building ancd grounds (Guilford County Deed 352, Book 386). With lots
deeded in 1920 and 1924 to the Guilford County Board of Education by
Gurney S. Boren, a partner of Lindley’s in the terra cotta works, this
property was to house the Pomona High Schecol and its playground
(Guilford County Deed Book 343, Page 78, and Deed 518, Page 230).

The new school, named Pomona High School, was probably built .
around 1920. It was definitely standing by 1825 (Sanborn Map Company
1925). Criginally the new structure served as a county high school,
and elementary students in +the community attended the old frame
school, which stood +to the =ast, on the other side of Cameron (now
Bitting) Street. (By 1833 this frame structure had burned and been
demolished (Sanoorn Map Company 18925 map corrected through 18332).) In
19826, ollicwing +the creation of the Grezter Greensboro S5School
i , bcth schools wers trought into the city system. In the late
new school, named the Lindley Elementary School after Lindley,
o

|

few blocks to the north and the high zchool was converted

‘unior high school (Greensboro Record, November 16, 1840,
1946, and January 3, 1947). In 1329 its name was changed
to the Lin Junior High School, alsc 1in hcnor of Lindley (Arnett
19873:4275 . following vear the Jjunior hnigh school had 450
students, nineteen teachers, and four part-time teachers ("Greensboro

School Journal,"” February, 1830).

December

.o e W
l,.l

[

]
"‘3 L]
oy
[0

Two-s3tcry wings, almost identical 1in dJesign to the original
structure, were added at the southwest and scutheast corners of the
school in 1340 at a cost of about $3125,300 (Greensboro Record,
November 12, 1940). In 1851 a two-story ©brick addition was built
across the southern rear of the building, between the wings. Also in
the early L2505 a classroecm building was erected to the =ast, a
cafeteria <c the southeast, and an auditorium and gymnasium To the
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south which replaced an earlier auditorium/gymnasium that had been
attached to the school’s rear. These three buildings were connected
to the main building by a covered walkway (Sanborn Map Company 1925
map corrected through 1957).

Pomona High School was among the first of the large brick schools
built in the city in the 1920s, as part of a major consolidation of

the school system. Like +the others, it is a symmetrical, regular
structure accented with classical ornament. Its restrained finish
calls attention to its fine, 1limestone Doric portico, which dominates

its front facade.

In the 1970s the building ceased to be a school and in 1979 the
Greensboro Board of Education sold it to the Odell Hardware Company,
which uses 1its cafeteria and gymnasium as warehouse space (Guilford
County Deed Book 3012, Page 716). The main building and the 1953
classroom building are vacant.



9. Major Bibllographlcal Reterences

Previous documentation on flle (NPS):
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has been requested

Dpreviously listed in the National Register

Dpreviously determined eligible by the National Register

Ddasignated a National Historic Landmark

Dreoorded by Historic American Buildings
Survey #

[_recorded by Historic American Engiresring
Record #

[x] see continuation sheet

Primary location of additional data:
(2] State historlc praservation office
[} Cther State agency

[ JFederal agency

. TLocal government

] Uriversity

[ 1Other

Specity repository:

10, Geographlcal Data

Z
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UTM References
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__'See continuation sheet

D

Veroal Boundary Description  The former Pomona Hig

Creenstoro Tax Map 158, 3Lock 4, Parcel 1,
ezst, Spring Garden Street on the north, Scott
northern edge of Hiatt Street on the south (see

n Scheool occupies the northeast section of
which is bounded by Bitting Street on the

enue on the west, and the former
4.

By
zttached copy of tax map).

-See continuation sheet

Beundary Justificalion

of the oroperrty historically and currently

The bDounzaries of the former
1

“omona High School include all
azsocizted with the school.

: See continuation sheet
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